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The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the 
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The Annual report serves the purposes of 
both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under company law.  
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies on pages 44 to 49 of the 
attached financial statements, and comply with the charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association, 
the Companies Act 2006, and the requirements of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of 
Recommended Practice, applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (SORP 2019). 
 
The Exceed Academies Trust consists of the following schools:  
 
• Copthorne Primary School – A Founding School, judged Outstanding by Ofsted in November 2021 
• Horton Grange Primary School – A Founding School, judged Outstanding by Ofsted (Monitoring visit February 

2020) 
• Horton Park Primary School – A Founding School, judged Good by Ofsted in June 2022 
• Appleton Academy (All through Primary – Secondary) – A Sponsored Academy (joined September 2017, 

judged Good by Ofsted in November 2021) 
• Holybrook Primary School – A Sponsored Academy (joined December 2017, judged Outstanding by Ofsted in 

April 2022) 
• Harden Primary School – A converter Academy (joined October 2018, judged Good by Ofsted in September 

2019) 
• Bradford Alternative Provision Academy (joined March 2019, judged Outstanding by Ofsted in April 2023) 
• Cottingley Village Primary (joined 1 February 2021, judged Good by Ofsted) 
• Baildon Glen Primary School (joined 1 May 2022, judged Inadequate by Ofsted) 
• Bowling Park Primary School (joined September 2022, judged Good by Ofsted) 
• Oastlers School (joined March 2023, judged Outstanding by Ofsted) 
• Cavendish Primary School (joined May 2023, judged Good by Ofsted) 
• Knowleswood Primary School (joined May 2023, judged Requires Improvement by Ofsted) 

The combined October 2023 Census figures for total pupils in the above schools was 5,710.   
 
Our high-performing schools continue to support other schools within and beyond the trust, helping to fulfil our 
ethical goal of contributing to system-wide improvements in education. Copthorne Primary School is designated by 
the Department for Education (DfE) as a teaching school hub. It leads the implementation and delivery of national 
teacher development programmes for Bradford’s schools and trusts, plus our partners beyond the city. In December 
2019, Exceed SCITT was judged ‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted. The SCITT trains the next generation of teachers for the 
trust and the region. Exceed Institute leads the trust’s investment in its own workforce. 
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The trust supports its own schools and others by leading the delivery of a wide range of programmes and projects, 
including: 
 
• The Early Career Teachers programme for early career teachers and their mentor 
• A suite of five National Professional Qualifications in partnership with Ambition Institute 
• An Appropriate Body service for the quality assurance of induction for early career teachers 
• School-to-school support in both Bradford and Knowsley in partnership with Bradford Opportunity Area 
• Headteacher coaching to support schools’ recovery from the challenges of Covid-19 
• Programmes to enhance parental engagement provision in Bradford schools 
• Teaching Apprenticeships with schools from across the region 
• Subject networks for Exceed Academies Trust schools 

Our teaching school hub works in partnership with Wellspring Academy Trust, Northern Star Academies Trust, White 
Rose Academies Trust and Titus Salt School in delivering national programmes. 
 
Structure, governance and management 
  
a.  Constitution 
  
The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and is an exempt charity.  The charitable company's Memorandum and 
Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.   
   
The Articles of Association require the members of the charitable company to appoint at least three members to be 
responsible for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the management of the Trust. 
The trustees of Exceed Academies Trust are directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.   
  
Details of the Trustees who served during the period are included in the Reference and administrative details on 
page 1. 
 
b.  Members' liability 
  
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the 
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such 
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a 
member. 
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c.  Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees 
 
As clearly set out in the Articles of Association, the Board of Trustees must consist of a minimum of three Trustees 
and comprise;  

• up to five Trustees appointed by the Members,  
• a minimum of two Parent Trustees, in the event that no provision is made for at least two Parent Local 

Governors on each established Local Board.  

The Board may also appoint any Co-opted Trustees. There are no employees of the Trust on the Board of Trustees.   
 
The Board of Trustees has appointed Local Advisory Boards (LABs) to oversee each school within the Trust. The LABs 
have delegated powers to oversee the day to day running of the schools. Each LAB must consist of a minimum of 
three Governors and comprise;  

• at least three Co-opted Governors appointed by the Board of Trustees,  
• two staff Governors elected by staff employed at the school,  
• two parent Governors elected by parents of registered pupils at the school,  
• the Head Teacher of the school on an ex officio basis,  
• a Trust representative on an ex-officio basis. 

Subject to remaining eligible, Trustees and Governors serve a term of office of four years, with the exception of the 
Trust representative and Head Teacher. Trustees and Governors are eligible to be re-elected or re-appointed. 
 
The Trust Board and Local Advisory Boards regularly review their skills and effectiveness, referring to the Academy 
Trust Handbook, the DfE’s Competency Framework for Governance and following guidance on good practice 
provided by external organisations including the National Governance Association and Confederation of School 
Trusts. 
 
Recruitment of Trustees and Governors includes an interview process and completion of appropriate checks to 
ensure they are suitable to join the Trust.  
 
d.  Induction and training of Trustees and Governors 
  
The training and induction provided for new Members, Trustees and Local Governors will depend on their existing 
experience. As there are normally only a few new Members, Trustees and Local Governors in a year, induction tends 
to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. Where necessary, induction will provide training 
on charity, educational, legal, and financial matters.  All new Members and Trustees will be given the opportunity 
to have a tour of all the academies and the chance to meet with staff and pupils. All new Local Governors are given 
a tour of the Academy and the chance to meet with staff and pupils. 
 
All Members, Trustees and Local Governors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, 
budgets, plans, the Exceed Governance Handbook, the Exceed Governance Framework and Scheme of Delegation 
and other documents, including the Academy Trust Handbook and governor/director guidance documentation from 
the DfE/ESFA that they will need to undertake their role.  
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Exceed Academies Trust also has Continual Professional Development Plans for Trustees and Governors, which are 
supported by online resources and a training tool that can be accessed by all Members, Trustees and Local 
Governors. New Trustees and Local Governors are required to complete safeguarding training as part of their 
induction and are expected to update this training regularly. All Trustees and Local Governors are encouraged to 
pursue professional development opportunities throughout the year to ensure that Trustees are able to challenge 
and hold the Executive Board and Executive Team to account. 
 
All Trustees and Governors are required to complete an entry for the register of interests, which is updated on an 
ongoing basis. 
 
e.  Organisational structure  
  
The Members of Exceed Academies Trust have ultimate control over the Trust, with the ability to appoint other 
Members and Trustees, and the right to amend the Trust’s Articles of Association. The Members monitor, challenge 
and hold the Trustees to account on finance, school improvements, the objects of the Trust, and recruitment of 
schools to the Trust.  
 
The Board of Trustees sets the strategic direction of the Trust and monitors its performance. It appoints 
professionals from the public sector, private industry, voluntary sectors and the community, whose knowledge and 
expertise can make a difference to the lives of children and young people. Trustees work together on the Board in 
a voluntary capacity to ensure that the Trust meets the needs of the communities it serves.  
 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Trust is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Trust and is accountable 
to the Board.  
 
A Scheme of Delegation is in place which stipulates the responsibilities delegated to Local Advisory Boards by the 
Board of Trustees and where further delegation to Senior Management can occur. Head Teachers are accountable 
to their Local Advisory Boards. Where a school is categorised as ‘Requires Improvement’ or ‘Inadequate’ the Head 
Teacher is supported by the Chief Executive Officer of the Trust, and where deemed necessary an Interim Education 
Board (IEB) in place of the LAB, to ensure that rapid improvements are secured. 
 
The Board of Trustees also has three subcommittees to act in an advice and scrutiny capacity to the Board in respect 
of Finance, Risk and Audit functions, the Teaching School Hub, and the SAFE Taskforce. These committees have a 
minimum of 3 members and the membership and terms of reference are reviewed annually by the Board. 
 
f.  Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 
 
The Members consider the board of trustees and the senior management team comprising of the key management 
personnel of the Trust to be in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating the Trust on a day to day 
basis.  
 
The salary for the Chief Executive Officer of the trust is set by the board of trustees following review and 
recommendation by the CEO Performance subcommittee, in line with external Advice, guidance and following the 
principles of the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD).  
 
The salaries for key management personnel will be set by the Chief Executive Officer of the trust in consultation 
with the trustees and taking appropriate HR and legal advice.   Salaries for head teachers will be set in line with 
STPCD as well as Exceed Academies Trust own pay policy and salaries for support staff are set in line with the NJC 
Green Book. The setting of salaries takes into account the need to pay staff fairly for the work they do, as well the 
Trust’s obligations under the Equality Act and Equal Pay legislation.  
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g.  Trade Union facility time.  
 
Under the provision of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulation 2017:  
 
For the year ended 31 March 2023: 
Relevant union officials  
 

Number of employees who were relevant union 
officials during the relevant period 

Full time equivalent number 

6 4 
 
 
Percentage of time spent on facility time  
 

Percentage of time Number of employees 
0% 4 
1% - 50% 0 
51% - 99% 0 
100% 0 

 
 
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 
 

Provide the total costs of facility time £115 
Provide the total pay bill £22.5m 
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on 
facility time 

0.001% 

 
 
Paid trade union activities 
 

Time spent on paid union trade union activities as a 
percentage of total paid facility time hours 

0% 
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h.  Related Parties 
 
During the year the Trust entered into transactions with Canterbury Nursery School. Duncan Jacques, CEO of Exceed 
Academies Trust is a member of their governing body.   
 
Engagement with employees 
 
The Trust proactively and consistently engages with all employees through various communication methods which 
have in the last 12 months taken the form of a comprehensive staff survey including feedback regarding actions 
taken, regular staff newsletters and staff advice notes. 
 
The Trust is committed to engaging in meaningful consultation with both staff and union colleagues where changes 
to academies are necessary in order to ensure future financial security of the Trust.  
 
Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with the Trust 
 
All of our individual Academies actively engage with parents of pupils across the Trust in a number of ways including 
meetings, telephone call, emails, websites and text messages.  
 
The trust has Local Advisory Boards for each of its schools who have delegated powers to oversee the day to day 
running of the schools. Link Trustees support and work with each of our schools and regularly report back to the 
Board on all matters relating to their school. A Chairs network was established in September 2020 to share good 
practice, support each other and provide opportunities to share common themes.  
 
The Trust actively engages with Suppliers through the undertaking of appropriate procurement exercises, ongoing 
contract management processes and partnership engagement.  
 
 
Objectives and Activities 
  
a.  Objects and aims 
  
The principal object and activity of Exceed Academies Trust is to advance for the public benefit education for pupils 
of difference abilities between the ages of 2 and 16 years.  
 
In accordance with the Articles of Association the charitable company has entered into a Master Funding Agreement 
approved by the Secretary of State for Education.   
 
The Master Funding Agreement specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting pupils to the Academies, 
the catchment area from which the pupils are drawn, and that the curriculum should be broad and balanced and 
relevant to the needs and aspirations of all our learners.  
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Through consultation with our Members, Trustees, Local governors and of course our schools, we have created a 
set of core values for Exceed Academies Trust:  

 
 
Our core educational vision is to provide an outstanding school experience for all. 
  
Our schools retain their individuality, own identity and local governance.  
 
Our schools aim to be inclusive, high achieving and ones in which our learners, staff and the wider community strive 
to ‘see what’s possible’. 
 
Children and students are at the heart of everything we do  
 
Our improvement model reflects the preferred DFE approach of ‘stabilise, repair, improve and sustain’.  
The Trust recognises its moral purpose to support schools and academies across the city and the region.  
 
The values that underpin our beliefs and actions are summarized in this word art which features in the Exceed board 
room. In summary:  

• We put children first in everything – our actions, decision making, daily processes,  
• We promote diversity, empowerment, partnerships and equality, 
• We all believe that we have a moral purpose to do what we do on a daily basis,  
• We are passionate about raising standards and outcomes by instilling a culture of high performance, 

expectations and accountability. 
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b.  Public benefit 
  
When setting the objectives of the charitable company for the year the trustees of Exceed Academies Trust have 
given careful consideration to the Charities Commission guidance on public benefit.  The main public benefit 
delivered by the Trust is the provision of a high quality education for the children we serve. This has been evidenced 
through the results achieved and feedback from external assessments.  
  
Strategic Report – Achievement and performance 
 
The publication of the outcomes of national tests and examinations will resume for 2022-23 academic outcomes. 
At the time of writing, schools and the Trust have provisional, unvalidated outcomes that are subject to change. 
This data has been used to produce the following provisional outcomes report. In addition, we have maintained 
our celebration of our schools and organisations successes during 2022-23. 
 
Provisional trust-level outcomes 
 
Like-for-like, year-on-year comparison of outcomes is not possible due to the disruption of the Covid-19 pandemic; 
new schools joining and contributing to trust-level outcomes; and changes to frameworks that affect assessment 
or performance measures. The following presents the outcomes of the 13 schools and academies that began the 
year with the trust or joined during the academic year. This represents an increase of three schools compared to 
the previous year. 



 
EXCEED ACADEMIES TRUST 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
 

 
TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 (CONTINUED) 
 

 

 
BHP LLP  Page 11 
 

 
 

Children tend to have below national average starting points at the start of their Early Years education but take 
positive strides whilst in our care (national average for 2023 unavailable). 
 

 
Phonics teaching is a priority for our schools and by the end of Year 1 our children are performing in line with the 
national average. 
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By the end of Year 2, our children are performing close to the national average but have not yet equalled it. 
Provision is strong and effective and some outcomes, especially at Greater Depth Standard, exceed the national. 
 

 
 

Our children perform well above national in the recently introduced Year 4 Multiplication Tables Check. 
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By the end of Year 6, our children tend to consistently perform better than the national average at both the 
Expected Standards and Greater Depth Standard. This reflects the positive journey our children make from below 
average outcomes in Early Years to above average outcomes by the end of Key Stage 2 despite the challenges 
faced by many of our school communities. 
 
Our three school’s outcomes at the end of Key Stage 4 are diverse and representative of the nature of each 
provision: a SEMH special school; and alternative provision academy; and a mainstream all-through school.  
 
The outcomes of our SEMH special school are above those of comparable schools across the country, including for 
Attainment 8 (9.7 compared to 7.6 in similar schools) and Progress 8 (-1.8 compared to -2.2). Similarly, our young 
people attending our alternative provision academy performs very well compared to similar settings, including 
100% of students being in education, employment, or training; 72% achieving grade 9-1 in GCSE Maths and 72% in 
GCSE English; and attendance of 72%. The cohort by its very nature changes year-on-year (even term-on-term in 
some cases). In both provisions, success by individual young people that has been impacted by adversity and/or 
trauma is measured by any level of educational achievement and improved life chances, often beyond 
government’s performance measures for mainstream settings. For these two setting, there is no official national 
data report to directly compare to, but we have identified similar settings to compare their outcomes against. 
Both settings had an Outstanding Ofsted inspection outcome in 2022-23. 
 
Our mainstream secondary’s provisional outcomes for our through-school reflect the inclusive nature of the 
provision. Performance measures are impacted by in-year admissions, a non-selective mixed ability cohort, and 
students’ attendance at alternative provision, but the school accepts this to meet their needs. Provisional grade 9-
4 English outcomes stand of 59% and 55% for Maths; and provisional Attainment 8 and Progress 8 of 35.36 and -
0.53 respectively. 
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Appleton Academy 
 

 Appleton Academy has been assessed for the Carnegie Centre of Excellence for Mental Health in Schools 
‘School Mental Health Award’ and achieved Gold status. This is the highest level and recognises the 
support Appleton can provide other schools on a local and national level 

 Primary and secondary aged children are provided with the opportunity to enhance their English 
curriculum with work with recognised authors, including Nik Perring. In addition to a calendar of author 
visits throughout the year, our children and young people take part in the First Story programme and Age 
of Innocence 

 Appleton has taken part in the Born in Bradford NHS research programme that has now reached the 
secondary phase of research. This phase of the project is called Age of Wonder. As part of the programme 
young people in years 8, 9 and 10 have taken part in 2 online surveys that measure their attitudes to a 
range of issues including mental health, 140 Year 9 pupils have taken part in health measures where they 
have been weighed and measured and 25 of our year 9 pupils volunteered to have their blood taken for 
research. (One of the highest uptakes in the programme.) This is a 3-year project that the academy is 
involved in.   

 Primary have had a successful year working with West Yorkshire Maths Hub to further embed their 
mastery curriculum. The final report was extremely positive and identified the consistency of teaching, 
good teacher subject knowledge and high levels of engagement in lesson. 

 
Baildon Glen Primary School 
 

 Baildon Glen Primary have built up many community links ‘Litter Free Baildon’, Baildon Town Council and 
Baildon Horticultural Society and been involved in a variety of projects.  

 We have worked with our parents to ensure they are welcomed into school and understand what their 
children are learning about.  This has included: parent workshops, good work assemblies, performances 
and events in the classroom.  These events have been well attended and parents/carers have provided 
great feedback.  

 We have developed the ‘6 ways to grow’ at Baildon Glen along with our children and staff.  These 6 ways 
are a golden thread that run through the curriculum and learning provision and have changed the 
children’s attitude to learning, which has vastly improved. 

 
Bowling Park Primary School 
 

 Year 5 children worked with Roma author, Richard O'Neill, and Michelle Russell to publish a book, 'Broad 
Ford to Bradford'. The Editorial Team were photographers, authors, researchers and great advocates for 
their school and city. 

 The school achieved the Wildlife Gardening Award 2023 from the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust 
 Refurbishment project at New Cross Street site completed in August 2023 
 5 ECTs successfully completed induction 
 BD5 in Bloom: Bowling Park was the winning school for the past 3 years and is awaiting this year's 

outcome 
 
Bradford AP Academy 
 

 We have successfully opened The Bungalow for students as the site they will access before going onto 
Aireview or Jesse Street 

 We successfully ensured our APST have been extended until March 2025 
 We worked with the Anne Frank Trust to produce a video about discrimination that has been shared with 

other schools 
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Cavendish Primary School 
 Six staff members successfully completing their NPQH's across the full range of qualifications.  
 Members of staff working as specialist teachers and visiting fellows for the Exceed teaching school.  
 Successfully joined Exceed Academies trust after a due diligence process. 

 
Copthorne Primary School 

 Our junior traffic wardens made significant improvements to parking in front of the school, making our 
entrance safer for families. 

 A new greenhouse and planting area have been established for our gardening club. The trees and fruit 
bushes planted in our new orchard have also started to produce fruits such as plums, apples, pears and 
blackberries. 

 A 'Parent Forum' was successfully set up, providing a space for our community to discuss planned 
developments in the area, parent courses, school attendance and school improvement updates.  

Cottingley Village Primary School 

 Cottingley Village Primary School are proud of our success in weaving music across the curriculum with 
children composing, performing, learning guitar and recorders, as well as a new musical theatre after 
school club, which is highly popular with both children and parents, especially after their stunning end of 
year performance. 

 The children at Cottingley Village Primary School are loving our new Big Cat reading books and this is 
fostering their reading for pleasure and engagement in reading. 

 Cottingley Village Primary School are thrilled with their sporting achievement which include the Year Six 
boys who were semi-finalists in the football tournament, Year 6 girls reached the quarter finals in the 
football, we came 3rd in the swimming gala and we had multiple top ten finishes in the cross country 
events.  

Exceed SCITT 
 91% of Exceed SCITT Teachers successfully completed the programme and gained QTS at the end of the 

22-23 academic year. Of those looking for employment as a teacher, 92% have secured ECT posts.  
 In a challenging year for recruitment, Exceed SCITT managed to recruit 45 SCITT Teachers for 23-24 

academic year which is above the target figure set earlier in the year.  
 Exceed SCITT has developed its partnerships ahead of ITT Accreditation for 24/25 with new Lead Partners 

in Bronte Academy Trust and Priestly Academy Trust. Northern Lights have also joined Exceed SCITT as a 
Lead Partner as they will no longer be an accredited provider.  

 
Exceed Teaching School Hub 

 Exceed Teaching School Hub has significantly increased partnership work across Bradford, delivering high 
quality Teacher development programmes for ECT and NPQs to 140 schools. This is 48 schools more than 
last year. 

 We are proud that attendance and engagement of our annual ECF Training events is significantly above 
the national average: 94% for Mentor events (national: 55%) and 97% for ECT events (national: 65%) 

 We are delighted that 98% our participants this year have rated the overall delivery of events as 'Good or 
Better’. 
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Harden Primary School 
 

 Harden Primary School was thrilled to be awarded with the 'Bronze accreditation' for the implementation 
of My Happy Mind, a whole school mental health and well-being programme.  

 The school was successful in a wide range of sporting activity including local swimming galas, national 
cross-country trials, and a range of football tournaments therefore leading to a successful accreditation of 
the 'Gold School Games' award. 

 The school has a very active Eco Committee that conducts regular reviews of the school's environmental 
impact and puts many sustainable strategies in place leading to being awarded the Eco Schools 'Green 
Flag'. 

 
Holybrook Primary School 
 

 Holybrook Primary School was awarded the T&A Bradford School of the Year aware 2022/23 
 Holybrook Primary School achieved the Gold Mental Health Award  
 Holybrook Primary School Key Stage 1 & 2 combined team came first in the local area schools Olympics in 

July.  
 After the success of our own use and implementation of the 'Zones of Regulation' we were asked to 

deliver training to schools across the city 
 
Horton Grange Primary School 
 

 Our Junior Road Safety Team has developed strong partnerships with police, traffic wardens and our local 
councillor, Cllr Ahmed, to encourage and promote safer driving and parking practices in our local 
community. The team is the first of it's kind in the region and has been in the press on several occasions 

 Successfully held events across the year to engage families and the local community such as Christmas & 
Summer Fayres, Open Classroom events and year group performances 

 We collaborated with Class Dynamix to produce a school anthem written by pupils and Claire Helm 
Photography to produce a school video, both of which showcase the school's vision and values. Both have 
helped to promote the school in the local community and beyond with the school anthem receiving over 
3500 views on YouTube to date. 

 
Horton Park Primary School  
 

 Qatar Overseas Residential took place for a group of 10 pupils. This was a fully funded residential in 
partnership with QFI.  

 Inclusion Quality Mark Assessment took place in June 2023. The school successfully retains the Flagship 
Status.  

 Horton Park Primary School were awarded Shakespeare Gold School Status. The school has been 
participating in Coram Shakespeare Schools Festival for 7+ consecutive years.  

 B11 two-day Developmental Review took place in July 2023. The school was identified to be Outstanding 
in all areas. 

 
Knowleswood Primary school 
 

 The development of our outdoor classroom and garden has provided children with new experiences and 
skills in caring for the environment.  

 The school’s work with the NHS mental health trailblazers is fully embedded and provides multiple 
opportunities to support our children.  

 PE is now a strength in the school and the children are excited about PE lessons and making clear 
progress.  
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Oastlers School 
 

 Achieved the Silver Award for Rights Respecting Schools 
 Won the national ‘Engage’ football competition held at St Georges Park 
 Won the Bradford Manufacturing Week Schools Award (KS4) for the crisp package design project. 

   
Going concern 
   
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the 
going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies. 
  
Key performance indicators 
  
Ofsted remains a key performance indicator of the trust:  
 

Academy Ofsted Rating Date awarded 
Appleton Academy  Good 2021 
Baildon Glen Primary Fresh start (previous judgement Inadequate)  
Bowling Park Primary Good 2017 
Bradford AP Academy  Outstanding  2015 
Cavendish Primary School Good 2022 
Copthorne Primary Outstanding 2021 
Cottingley Village Primary Good 2017 
Harden Primary Good 2019 
Holybrook Primary  Outstanding 2022 
Horton Grange Primary Outstanding 2020 
Horton Park Primary  Good 2019 
Knowleswood Primary School Requires improvement 2019 
Oastlers School Outstanding 2023 

 
Exceed Academies Trust was formed around two outstanding schools (Horton Grange Primary and Copthorne 
Primary) and one Good school (Horton Park Primary). In September 2017 Appleton Academy joined the trust, Ofsted 
had previously graded the school as Requires Improvement, an Ofsted visit in November 2021 judged the school as 
Good. On 1 December 2017 Holybrook Primary joined the trust as a sponsored academy (Inadequate). An Ofsted 
visit in 2022 judged the school as Outstanding.  Harden Primary joined the trust on 1 October 2018 as a requires 
improvement converter and an Ofsted visit in September 2019 graded the school as Good.  Bradford AP Academy 
joined the trust on 1 March 2019 as an Outstanding school. In February 2021 Cottingley Village Primary School joined 
as a Good Converter. From 1 May 2022 the trust took on its second primary sponsored academy formerly called 
Glenaire Primary inadequate) The school was renamed Baildon Glen Primary School from 1 September 2022.   
 
From 1 September 2022 Bowling Park Primary also joined the trust as convertor academy (Good). During 2023 we 
have welcomed three further schools into the trust. On 1 March 2023 Oastlers School joined us as an Outstanding 
convertor and on 1 May 2023 Cavendish Primary School and Knowleswood Primary School joined as convertor 
academies (Good and Requires improvement respectively). 
 
Exceed SCITT was awarded an Outstanding judgement from Ofsted in its first inspection in October 2019. 
 
It is the Trust’s aim to ensure all our schools are at least Good and on their journey to becoming Outstanding settings 
and this remains a key focus for trustees. 
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All of the academies key performance indicators relating to pupil outcomes and other key measures are set out each 
year by trustees. These are monitored on a half termly basis via a Headteachers report to the trustees and 
governors.    
 
Key financial performance indicators are set out each year with the academies relating to key measures, such as 
staffing percentages being below 80% of GAG, consistently reviewing percentage spends on non-staff costs, 
maintain pupil to teacher ratios across our schools and monitoring staff absence.  
 
All of these are reported to the trustees throughout the year.    
 
Promoting the success of the company 
 
Exceed Academies Trust is an outward facing organisation driven by a moral imperative to support and contribute 
to the wider educational community. This is reflected in the trust’s vision, strategy, ethical goals and values; the 
work of its schools; and its designation as a teaching school hub and SCITT. 
  
Visioning 
Pre- pandemic, in October 2019, members, trustees, governors and leaders revisited the trust’s vision and ethical 
goals. They are communicated regularly with a wider audience via the Trust’s website and documentation. They are 
also reflected in the published vision statements for the Hub and SCITT.  
  
‘Leading Academy Trust’ 
Exceed’s teaching school was referenced in Sir David Carter’s book (August 2020) as “one of the strongest models” 
of acting as the school improvement arm of a trust (p.21). Other trusts have approached us for conversations to 
learn about our approach as a result of this. 
  
Hosting teacher development programmes and events 
Via the Institute, Hub and SCITT, Exceed Academies Trust staff facilitate and deliver a wide range of teacher 
development events and programmes for the region, including the Early Career Framework and National 
Professional Qualifications. The Trust’s leaders share their extensive experience with peers from other schools and 
trusts. 
  
Opportunity Area 
The trust was represented on the Strategic Board and various priority groups of the Bradford Opportunity Area 
which concluded their work in August 2021. The trust is now contributing to the Alliance for Life Chances Board 
which will shape the focus and priorities of Bradford as a Priority Education Action Area.  
  
Social media 
Each of the trusts schools and organisations is active in the use of social media to celebrate the successes of their 
workforce, children and communities with the wider world. 
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Financial review 
  
a.  Reserves policy 
  
The trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually.  This review encompasses the nature of income and 
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves.   
 
The trustees have determined that an appropriate level of free reserves should be sufficient to cover immediate and 
forthcoming financial commitments (payroll and payment runs) and sufficient contingency (cash buffer) for 
unexpected payments. This has been deemed by the Trustees to be between 5% and 7% of GAG income which in 
2022/23 accounts equates to between £1,287k and £1,802k. 
 
The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants 
and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as increased costs or urgent maintenance.  
 
At the end of the period the trust has £3,289k of free reserves. The free reserves balance will be retained by the 
trust whilst there is uncertainty over future funding levels.  
 
The Trustees will review the balance of free reserves on an annual basis to ensure it is deemed adequate to meet 
the needs of the trust.  
  
b.  Financial report for the period 
  
During the period ended 31 August 2023, total income of £79,917k was recognised.   
  
The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of 
the assets concerned.  
  
Most of the Trust’s regular income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is 
restricted to particular purposes.  The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2023 and the 
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. 
  
Total expenditure amounting to £41,822k was incurred resulting in an overall surplus of £41,429k, after the gain on 
the defined benefit scheme of £3,334k.  
  
The restricted general fund excluding pension liability is £3,162k. The trust pension liability at the 31 August 2023 is 
£405k and this amount is underwritten by the Government if settlement was ever required.  
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c.  Investment policy 
  
The Trust has an Investment policy which is reviewed annually and approved by the board of trustees to provide a 
means to ensure:  
 
a. The Trust can meet its commitments; 
b. To ensure that sufficient sums are available at short notice or no notice to meet foreseeable 
 requirements; 
c. To earn an acceptable rate of return on surplus funds without undue risk; 
d. To spread risk between differing types of investment and institutions. 
 
A return on working capital should be optimised whilst allowing easy access of the funds.  In balancing risk against 
return the Trust policy is clearly geared towards avoiding risk than to maximising return. 
  
d.  Principal risks and uncertainties 
  
In previous years the trust has invested considerable time developing its Risk management process and training and 
developing all heads and senior leaders. Risk Registers are now in place for all schools and are listed as a standing 
item on the Local Advisory Board meetings 3 times a year.   
 
The main risks of the Trust have been identified:  

 
1. Ongoing uncertainty over schools funding 

The Trust has considerable reliance on continued government funding from ESFA and there continues to be 
uncertainty in the system around funding levels going forward. The legacy impact of Covid19, continued global 
supply issues, ongoing issues linked to Brexit and the war in Ukraine are causing inflationary pressures which are 
beginning to impact schools in a number of ways.  There is still no assurance within the system that policy or practice 
will remain the same going forward or that funding will continue at the same levels. This makes budgeting and 
forecasting for the future difficult, but the Trust has established robust financial plans and has built up sufficient 
reserves to support it through potentially more difficult financial periods. 

 
2. Projection of pupil numbers and falling roles in primary schools in Bradford  

The population and demographics of the city of Bradford are changing. Previously seen bulges in primary numbers 
are now working their way through secondary schools and forecasts for the next 5 years indicate a significant drop 
in early years and primary places required.  This will inevitably impact on the finance of the schools within the trust.  
 
3. Demands on High Needs funding across the district 

As well as financial challenges across the whole school one of the major risks facing our schools is the increasing 
demand on SEND. A significant issue is the ongoing rise in children and young people with SEND and Education, 
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) with increasingly complex needs without adequate funding which puts further 
pressures on school’s budget.  The Bradford Local Authority currently has High Needs Block reserves but is forecast 
to be in a deficit within 2 years which challenges our schools further.  
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4. Recruitment and retention of staff  

This is a risk for our trust for both teachers and support staff.   
 
Nationally there is a significant shortage of specialist teachers in secondary education and this is making 
recruitment very challenging. Our SCITT has also seen a drop in number of trainee primary teachers applying this 
year which poses a risk in future about recruitment of teachers in to the primary phase of the trust. 
 
We also have a number of vacancies for SEND teaching assistants, office managers, other support staff which the 
trust is finding hard to find suitable candidates, particularly post pandemic with many other business being able to 
offer increase working from home options for a greater salary.    
 
We are working to ensure we are the Employer of Choice in order to attract the best individuals. 
 
5. Estate Management 

Trust estate is managed in line with the department for educations Good Estates Management with compliance 
tracked using the Trusts CAFM system. Meetings are held weekly with site managers and headteachers to ensure 
compliance and support in relation to any remedial actions. 
  
School Condition Allocation funding is utilised across the trust estate on the back of regular condition surveys and 
annual site development planning process with individual headteachers. This in turn ensure the value for money 
and effective use of SCA to ensure all of the Trust estates is safe, continuously improved and in line with all guidance. 
  
In addition to the above we undertake annual health checks to review and monitor compliance records and 
paperwork, annual fire risk assessments and bi-annual maintenance audits. 
  
The Trust utilises in house and external HSE specialists to monitor, review and continuously the safety of our schools.  
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Fundraising 
The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was 
monitored by the Trustees.  
 
Streamline Energy and Carbon Reporting 

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 
1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 

 2022/23 2021/22  

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh)  4,565,361 4,547,457 

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
 
Gas consumption 
Owned transport – mini-buses 
Total Scope 1 

  
 

696.95 
13.42 

710.37 

 
 

552.78 
13.48 

566.26 

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
 
Purchased electricity 

 316.22 282.34 
  

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 
 
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 

 5.65 6.54 
  

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e  1,032.24 855.14 

Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupil  0.18 0.23 

 
 
Quantification and reporting methodology 
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG 
Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company 
Reporting. 
 
Intensity measurement 
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the recommended 
ratio for the sector. 
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Measures taken to improve energy efficiency 
During the 2022/23 academic year we continued a programme to install internal and external LED lighting across 
our estate, reducing the amount of energy usage. Five of our schools are now 100% LED, with many more on the 
journey to become so.  
 
We have replaced six boilers across trust schools whilst two further schools have been identified where 
replacements will be made in the next academic year.  We updated perimeter heating systems where refurbishment 
has taken place across our estate.  
 
In the 2022/23 academic year we have replaced the trust’s fleet of minibuses which will be Euro 6 with 0 g/km CO2 
emissions. We had 23 vehicles with zero or low emissions by the end of year. 
 
Plans for future periods 
  
a.  Future developments 
  
The Trust has a sustainable growth strategy which has been reviewed by the DfE and approved by our Trustees.   
 
During 2022/23 four schools joined our trust.  Growth will continue in 2023/24 as a Primary Pupil Referral Unit has 
been given the Academy Order and it is expected to join in Spring 2024.  
 
This is in line with our strategy to continue to grow at a sustainable pace and will continue to build upon economy 
and effectiveness established in the formation of the Trust from December 2016.  
 
The performance of the Trust continues to give Trustees reasonable assurance for future growth; however, all new 
projects will come with a business case including a detailed due diligence. Decisions on growth will be made on a 
case by case basis and there are further schools with whom the trust is in discussion with about future additions to 
the Trust. 
 
The Exceed Teaching School Hub has performed exceptionally well when judged against their KPIs linked to DfE 
success criteria and we look forward to their second year of full delivery. All KPI’s are scrutinised on behalf of 
Trustees at a separate and established sub-committee. The reaccreditation of the Teaching School Hub is due in 
early 2024.  
 
Exceed SCITT will continue to develop and increase our offering to our schools and wider partnership schools. Exceed 
Academies Trust was re-accredited as an ITT provider under the Government’s ‘market review’ of Initial Teacher 
Training and was also re-accredited as a Level 6 Teaching Apprenticeship Provider. From September2024 we will 
launch the Secondary ITT arm of the SCITT. 
 
Exceed Academies Trust continues to lead the Bradford Safe Taskforce through Appleton Academy. The Taskforce 
(funded through the DfE and Home Office) is monitored by Trustees through a newly formed sub-committee and is 
scrutinised by the DfE against a range of success criteria. Support has been provided to other Taskforces, as 
requested by the DFE  around the country as our work to date is thriving in line with the aims.  The extension of the 
Alternative Provision Taskforce to August 2025, led by Bradford AP Academy continues to be a success.  
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Disclosure of information to auditors 
  
Insofar as the Trustees are aware: 
 
there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and 
 
the Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditors are aware of that information. 
  
The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the 
company directors and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
………………………………………. ………………………………………. 
H Lenton D Jacques 
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer 
  
 
………………………………………. ………………………………………. 
Date   Date 
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Scope of Responsibility 
 
As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Exceed Academies Trust has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
 
As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in the Academy Trust Handbook, the DfE’s 
Governance Handbook, and the DfE’s Competency Framework for Governance. 
 
The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for 
ensuring financial controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in 
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Exceed 
Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of 
trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
 
Governance 
 
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the 
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 13 times during the period (including 
sub-committee meetings). The Board maintains additional oversight of Exceed Academies Trust’s education and 
financial delivery and public funds in between meetings, including the review of management accounts, through 
updates on key strategic projects provided by correspondence, and regular meetings between the Chair and Chief 
Executive. Attendance during the period at meetings of the full board of trustees was as follows: 
 

Trustees Meetings attended Out of a possible 
 

Victoria Eaton 4 7 
Jason Edwards 6 7 
Belinda Fearnley 6 7 
Iain Gordon 4 7 
Elaine Hughes 7 7 
Sharon Lambert 7 7 
Hearl Lenton (Chair) 4 6 
Christopher Webb 6 7 
Trevor Evans 1 1 
Jonathan Nichols 2 3 

 
In addition to the Board meetings, Exceed Academies Trust operates a Finance, Risk and Audit Committee, which is 
chaired by an independent non-executive co-opted Committee Member, a Teaching School Hub Committee, which 
is chaired by one of the Trustees, and a SAFE Taskforce Committee, which is chaired by one of the Trustees. These 
Committees provide significant scrutiny outside of full Board meetings, and regular updates on significant matters 
are shared by the Committees to the Board.  
 
Changes in the Board of Trustees 
Trevor Evans, Chair of Trustees since the Trust's formation, stepped down during the reporting period. The Board 
was delighted to appoint Hearl Lenton, former Chair of the Trust Board of a successful multi-academy trust, to the 
Board of Trustees. Hearl's skills and experience complemented those of the other Board members. He was elected 
Chair at the meeting of the Trust Board in December 2022.  
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The Trust was saddened by the passing of Trustee Jonathan Nichols during the reporting period. The Board is 
considering options and potential opportunities for recruiting a replacement Trustee. 
 
Board evaluation and development 
The Board conducts annual evaluations of its effectiveness and skills and takes action based on the outcomes. This 
process helps identify areas for further development and the skills required when appointing new Trustees. 
 
The Board uses information from external audits and self-evaluation, as well as the 21 trust board self-evaluation 
questions developed by the NGA from those published by the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Education, 
Governance and Leadership, to evaluate its effectiveness and continue to develop its processes and compliance. 
 
As the Trust has matured and its scale has increased, the data and other information provided to the Board and its 
sub-committees, including Local Advisory Boards, has been subject to ongoing review and enhancement. The Trust 
has subscribed to a system that allows the creation of dashboards pulling information from the school information 
management systems. This system provides clear and meaningful data and benchmarking information regarding a 
wide range of performance indicators to Trustees and Local Governors, without creating additional workload for 
school leaders. This complements other information and updates provided by Trust and school leaders. 
 
Robust accountability 
Ensuring robust accountability is the priority of the Board's overarching governance structure. The Exceed 
Governance Framework and Scheme of Delegation is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis. 
 
The Board fully understands that the Trust's governance arrangements play a vital role in the strategic oversight of 
its work by providing challenge, critical appraisal, and expertise. Trustees take into account the guidance in the DfE's 
Governance Handbook and the Academy Trust Handbook. 
 
Effective and efficient governance 
The Board, supported by the Governance Manager, ensures that all business is conducted effectively and efficiently 
throughout each academic year, including any statutory returns and compliance requirements. 
 
To remain updated on governance practice and statutory requirements, the Trust is a member of the Confederation 
of School Trusts and the National Governance Association, and the Governance Manager is a member of Trust 
Governance Professionals and the Chartered Governance Institute. Trustees and Local Governors are encouraged 
to undertake regular CPD, such as attending sector conferences, webinars, and online learning, and participating in 
bespoke in-house training sessions. 
 
The Trustees and Local Governors also participate in activities across the Trust including academy visits, dealing with 
exclusions, complaints, and staffing matters in line with our policies. 
 
Conflicts of interest 
All governance representatives and all staff in a position of control and influence complete an annual declaration of 
interests. All individuals are notified of the requirement to inform the Trust of any changes to their register at the 
earliest possible time. This requirement is contained within the Trust's governance documents. 
 
All Board and sub-committee meeting agendas have, as a standing item, the requirement to confirm the presence 
of any conflicts and also that the registers are up to date. Spot checks are performed by the Trust's Governance 
Team via Companies House to check the accuracy of details held. 
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Committees 
 
The Finance, Risk & Audit Committee is a subcommittee of the main Board of Trustees.  It supports the Board to 
oversee the controls environment and risk management within the Trust. The Committee exists to secure probity 
and efficiency in the management and expenditure by Exceed Academies Trust of income from all sources: public 
funding, donations and investment and commercial income, and review compliance with the ESFA Academy Trust 
Handbook. 
 
Attendance at the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee meetings in the period was as follows: 
 

Finance, Risk & Audit Committee Members Meetings attended Out of a possible 
 

Louise Ingham (Chair) * 2 3 
Jason Edwards 2 3 
Iain Gordon   2 3 
Elaine Hughes 3 3 
 

* Denotes Non-Executive Co-opted Committee Member 
 

 
The Teaching School Hub Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board. It supports the Board to monitor, assess 
and scrutinise the performance of the Teaching School Hub against key performance indicators. Attendance at the 
Teaching School Hub Committee meetings in the period was as follows: 
 

Teaching School Hub Committee Members Meetings attended Out of a possible 
 

Sharon Lambert (Chair) 2 3 
Trevor Evans 1 1 
Hearl Lenton 1 2 
Salma Rahman 1 2 
Stephanie Ngenda (Headteacher of Copthorne Primary School) * 1 1 
Salma Rahman (Acting Headteacher of Copthorne Primary School) * 1 2 
Duncan Jacques (Chief Executive Officer) 3 3 
Paul Butler (Director of School Improvement) 3 3 
Emma Dobson (Director of Exceed Teaching School Hub) 3 3 

 

* Denotes Non-Executive Co-opted Committee Member 
 
The SAFE Taskforce Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board. It supports the Board to monitor, assess and 
scrutinise the performance of the Bradford SAFE Taskforce against key performance indicators. Attendance at the 
SAFE Taskforce Committee meetings in the period was as follows: 
 

SAFE Taskforce Committee Members Meetings attended Out of a possible 
 

Elaine Hughes (Chair) 2 2 
Hearl Lenton 1 2 
Christopher Webb 2 2 
Duncan Jacques (Chief Executive Officer) 2 2 
Helen Jones (Executive Headteacher of Appleton Academy) 1 2 
Anna Wallace (SAFE Taskforce Commissioning Lead) 2 2 
Jonathan Nichols 1 1 



 
EXCEED ACADEMIES TRUST 
(A company limited by guarantee) 
 

 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

 

 
BHP LLP  Page 28 
 

 
Review of Value for Money 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value 
in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational 
and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer 
resources received. 
 
The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trusts’ use of its resources has provided good value for money 
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including 
the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.  
 
The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by: 
 
Continued trust wide efficiencies   
 
We are continuing to negotiate and review contracts on renewal to look for trust wide opportunities and cost 
savings as much as we can. For the new schools who have joined Exceed in the 22-23 year we have renegotiated 
their gas contracts through our trust provider and have been able to source contracts which will save the trust 
collectively £203k per annum.  
 
We entered a new photocopying contract trust wide in April 2023 which will save the trust £27k per annum and a 
trust wide Educational Psychology contract means all schools now have reduced hourly rates because of the scale.  
 
Catering contracts are due for renewal in spring 2024 and the majority of trust schools will be taking advantage. 
Outsource cleaning and ICT services are due for renewal from January 2025 and the procurement of these will 
commencing in mid 2024. 
 
The trust has a retainer contract with our legal provider that allows our schools to have one hours free advice on 
each case. This was used 138 times in the last 12 months which indicates it is regularly being used and valued by our 
leaders.     
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The Purpose of the System of Internal Control 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of  
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise 
the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  
 
The system of internal control has been in place in Exceed Academies Trust for the year to 31 August 2023 and up 
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 
 
Capacity to Handle Risk 
 
The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating,  
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of 
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's significant 
risks, that has been in place for the year to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees. 
 
The Risk and Control Framework 
 
The academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In 
particular, it includes:  
• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports 

which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees; 
• regular reviews by the board which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major 

purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; 
• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
• clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. 
• delegation of authority and segregation of duties; 
• identification and management of risks. 
 
The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and appointed Clive Owen LLP 
as specialist internal auditors to the Trust and undertake a scope of work as directed by the Finance, Risk and Audit 
Committee across all parts of the Trust.  Clive Owen LLP were selected through a tender process because of their 
skill, and knowledge of the education sector. 
 
The internal auditor's roles includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks 
on the academy's financial and other systems.  
 
During the year reviews have taken place on:   

• Data Protection & GDPR Compliance 
• Information Technology 
 
On a termly basis the audit reports are provided to the board of trustees, through the Finance, Risk and Audit 
Committee on the operation of the systems and controls, and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial 
responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, 
key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year 
progress. 
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Review of Effectiveness 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. During the period in question the review has been informed by: 
 

• the work of the internal auditors; 
• the work of the external auditors; 
• the financial management and governance self assessment process; 
• the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework. 
 
The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control by the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 
 
 
………………………………………. ………………………………………. 
H Lenton D Jacques 
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer 
  
 
………………………………………. ………………………………………. 
Date   Date 
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Exceed Academies Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of
Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement in place
between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date.
If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Trustees and ESFA.

D Jacques
Accounting Officer
Date: 
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
 observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to

2023;
 make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

D Jacques
Accounting Officer
Date: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF EXCEED
ACADEMIES TRUST
 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Exceed Academies Trust (the 'academy trust') for the year ended 31 August
2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and

the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting
Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF EXCEED
ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

 the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

 the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
 certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF EXCEED
ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
 

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: 

 we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with management, and
from our knowledge and experience of the sector;

 we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the accounts or
the operations of the academy trust, including the Charities Act 2011 and the guidance issued by the ESFA; 

 we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management and inspecting correspondence with the regulators; and

 identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team and the team remained alert to instances
of non-compliance throughout the audit.  

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust’s accounts to material misstatement, including obtaining an
understanding of how fraud might occur, by:  

 making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of
actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and  

 considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF EXCEED
ACADEMIES TRUST (CONTINUED)

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:  

 performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;  
 tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; 
 assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in the

accounting policies were indicative of potential bias; and  
 investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.  

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to:  

 agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;  
 reviewing correspondence with regulators and reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance; and
 enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors' Report.

Use of our report
 

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and its members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Lesley Kendrew (Senior statutory auditor)
  
for and on behalf of
BHP LLP
New Chartford House
Centurion Way
Cleckheaton
BD19 3QB
 
 
 

Date:
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO EXCEED ACADEMIES
TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 October 2023 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
Exceed Academies Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Exceed Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Exceed Academies Trust and ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Exceed Academies Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion
we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Exceed Academies Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Exceed Academies Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 1 December 2016 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1
September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations
in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
• checking that the academy trust's activities are consistent with its framework and its charitable objectives,
• checking that the governors and key staff have disclosed their interest in related parties, discussing the same with 

management and reviewing transactions during the period for undisclosed related party transactions,
• checking that any related party transactions during the period are conducted at normal commercial rates,
• checking that academy trust expenditure is permitted by its funding agreement,
• checking that any borrowings entered into, including leases, are in accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook 

2022,
• checking that any land and building transactions, especially disposals, are in line with the funding agreement and 

Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Lesley Kendrew (Reporting Accountant)
for and on behalf of
BHP LLP
New Chartford House
Centurion Way
Cleckheaton
BD19 3QB

Date: 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Restricted
funds
2023

Restricted fixed
asset funds

2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

Note         £000         £000         £000         £000         £000

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants: 3

Transfer from local
authority on conversion 492 (1,577) 40,395 39,310 1,905 

. Other donations and
capital grants 5 - 1,234 1,239 587 

Investments 5 92 - - 92 13 
Charitable activities: 4

Academy trust
educational operations - 37,258 - 37,258 26,290 
Teaching school hub 42 1,147 - 1,189 1,564 

Other income 6 829 - - 829 744 

Total income 1,460 36,828 41,629 79,917 31,103

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

Academy trust
educational operations      7 807 38,259 1,804 40,870 30,051 
Teaching school hub      7 10 942 - 952 1,392 

Total expenditure 817 39,201 1,804 41,822 31,443

Net
income/(expenditure)   643 (2,373) 39,825 38,095 (340) 

Transfers between funds  18 - (230) 230 - - 
Net movement in funds

before other
recognised gains   643 (2,603) 40,055 38,095 (340) 

Other recognised gains:   

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes  27 - 3,334 - 3,334 16,410 

Net movement in funds   643 731 40,055 41,429 16,070
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Restricted
funds
2023

Restricted fixed
asset funds

2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

Note         £000         £000         £000         £000         £000

Reconciliation of funds:   

Total funds brought
forward   2,646 2,026 67,571 72,243 56,173 

Net movement in funds   643 731 40,055 41,429 16,070 

Total funds carried
forward   3,289 2,757 107,626 113,672 72,243

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 44 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022
Note £000 £000

Fixed assets   

Intangible assets  14 1 3

Tangible assets  15 107,036 66,866

  107,037 66,869

Current assets   

Debtors  16 2,217 1,115

Cash at bank and in hand   10,298 9,702

  12,515 10,817

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year  17 (5,475) (4,211)

Net current assets    
 

7,040  
 

6,606

Total assets less current liabilities   114,077 73,475

Defined benefit pension scheme liability  27 (405) (1,232)

Total net assets   113,672 72,243

Funds of the academy trust   

Restricted funds:   

Fixed asset funds  18 107,626 67,571

Restricted income funds  18 3,162 3,258

Restricted funds excluding pension asset  18 110,788 70,829

Pension reserve  18 (405) (1,232)

Total restricted funds  18  
 

110,383  
 

69,597

Unrestricted income funds  18 3,289 2,646

Total funds   113,672 72,243
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AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The financial statements on pages 39 to 83 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on
their behalf, by:

H Lenton
Chair of Trustees
Date:

The notes on pages 44 to 83 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2023 2022
Note £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities  20 297 2,816

Cash flows from investing activities  22 (40,647) (2,530)

Cash flows from financing activities  21 40,946 2,400

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year   
 

596
 

2,686

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   9,702 7,016

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  23, 24 10,298 9,702

The notes on pages 44 to 83 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

  

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Exceed Academies Trust is a private limited company limited by guarantee incorporated in England.  The
address of the registered office is given in the Reference and Administrative Details given on page 1 of these
financial statements.  The nature of the academy trusts operations and principal activities are set out in the
Trustees’ Report on page 3.

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £1,000.

 Exceed Academies Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

  

1.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the academy
trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one
year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

  

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

 Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income (continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

 Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

 Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

 Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in 'Stocks' and ‘Income from
Other Trading Activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from Other Trading
Activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from Other Trading Activities’. Where it is impractical
to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from Other Trading Activities’.

 Transfer on conversion
Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when the risks and rewards
of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as a transfer on conversion
within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' to the net assets received.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

  

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are
made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each
activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which
contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are
apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are
allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

 Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

  

1.5 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

  

1.6 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by
the academy trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with
whom the funds are deposited.

 

1.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are
probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation
and any provision for impairment.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Intangible assets (continued)

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life.

 Amortisation is provided on the following basis:

Computer software - 25 % straight line

 

1.8 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use
of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction,
at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as
follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following basis:

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line
Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 25% straight line
Motor vehicles - 25% straight line

Assets under construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they are
brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

  

1.9 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.11 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will
pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide.

  

1.12 Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash at bank is classified
as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

 Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured
at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial
instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash
settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another
financial instrument. Amounts due to the academy trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less
any impairment.

  

1.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line
basis over the lease term.
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1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to
the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the
scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme
assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

  

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
funders where the asset acquired or created and is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education.

  

1.16 Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.
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2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension
liability.

Property valuation
Valuations of properties may have a material impact on the accounts.  Professional valuations are obtained when a
school transfers in from an existing academy or on conversion from local authority.  The valuers are independent
and suitably qualified.

Depreciation
Depreciation may have a material impact on the accounts. Assets are depreciated using set rates as detailed in the
fixed asset accounting policy.
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3. Income from donations and capital grants

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Restricted
funds
2023

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000         £000
Donations

Transferred from local authority
on conversion 492 (1,577) 40,395 39,310 1,905 

492 (1,577) 40,395 39,310 1,905

Donations 5 - - 5 - 
Capital grants - - 1,234 1,234 587 

Subtotal 5 - 1,234 1,239 587

497 (1,577) 41,629 40,549 2,492

Total 2022 102 (497) 2,887 2,492
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4. Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Restricted
funds
2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000
Educational Operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 25,739 25,739 19,373 
Other DfE/ESFA grants  

UIFSM - 426 426 315 
Pupil Premium - 2,523 2,523 1,658 
Others - 2,767 2,767 1,703 
Teachers Pay Grant - 188 188 136 
Safe Taskforce - 851 851 131 

- 32,494 32,494 23,316
Other Government grants  

Local authority income - 1,309 1,309 1,146 
SEN funding - 3,405 3,405 1,783 

- 4,714 4,714 2,929
Other income from the academy trust's

educational operations - 50 50 45 

- 37,258 37,258 26,290

Teaching school hub

DfE/ESFA grants - 729 729 886 
Other Government grants - 418 418 150 
Other income 42 - 42 528 

42 1,147 1,189 1,564

42 38,405 38,447 27,854

Total 2022 1 27,853 27,854

Included within other DFE/ESFA grants are Schools Supplementary grant, Recovery Premium Funding, National
Tutoring Programme grants, Alternative Provision Taskforce grant, Main Stream Additional grant, ECT & Mentor
grant and TCAF.
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4. Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities (continued)

5. Investment income

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000

Short term deposits 92 92 13
 

Total 2022 13 13

6. Other incoming resources

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000

Other trading activities 375 375 264 
Staff services 153 153 131 
Catering income 271 271 202 
Teacher training 16 16 11 
Insurance claims 14 14 136 

829 829 744

Total 2022 744 744

Page 53



 
EXCEED ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

7. Expenditure

Staff Costs
2023

Premises
2023

Other
2023

Total
2023

Total
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000         £000

Academy's educational
operations:

 
Direct costs 24,741 - 2,931 27,672 19,339 
Allocated support costs 3,724 3,035 6,439 13,198 10,712 
Teaching school hub:

 
Direct costs 344 - 20 364 332 
Allocated support costs 131 - 457 588 1,060 

28,940 3,035 9,847 41,822 31,443

Total 2022 21,465 2,300 7,678 31,443

8. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken

directly
2023

Support costs
2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000

Educational Operations 27,672 13,198 40,870 30,051 
Teaching school hub 364 588 952 1,392 

28,036 13,786 41,822 31,443

Total 2022 19,671 11,772 31,443
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Educational
Operations

2023

Teaching
school hub

2023

Total
funds
2023

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000

Pension finance costs 138 - 138 248 
Staff costs 3,724 131 3,855 3,963 
Depreciation 1,801 3 1,804 1,541 
Professional fees 696 406 1,102 1,207 
Technology costs 729 - 729 583 
Premises costs 3,047 - 3,047 2,295 
Legal costs - conversion 22 - 22 9 
Legal costs 236 - 236 16 
Other support costs 2,776 48 2,824 1,873 
Governance costs 29 - 29 37 

13,198 588 13,786 11,772

Total 2022 10,712 1,060 11,772
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9. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Operating lease rentals 114 90

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 1,804 1,549

Amortisation of intangible assets 2 2

Fees paid to auditors for:

- Statutory Audit 21 16

- Assurance services other than audit 3 3

Other financial services 3 2
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10. Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Wages and salaries 21,537 14,840

Social security costs 1,970 1,285

Pension costs 4,659 4,796

28,166 20,921

Agency staff costs 584 544

Staff restructuring costs 190 -

28,940 21,465

2023 2022
£000 £000

Redundancy payments 118 -

Severance payments 72 -

190 -

b. Severance payments

The academy trust paid 3 severance payments in the year (2022 - -), disclosed in the following bands:

2023 2022
No. No.

£0 - £25,000 2 -

£50,001 - £100,000 1 -
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10. Staff (continued)

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2023 2022
No. No.

Teachers 265 191

Admin and support 618 391

Management 88 61

971 643

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2023 2022
No. No.

Teachers 252 185

Admin and support 540 327

Management 85 60

877 572
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10. Staff (continued)

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022
No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 13 13

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 9 4

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 -

In the band £100,001 - £110,000 1 1

In the band £120,001 - £130,000 1 -

In the band £130,001 - £140,000 - 1

In the band £140,001 - £150,000 1 -

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust
was £2,447,213 (2022 £1,549,760).
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11. Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

 Human resources
 Financial services
 Payroll services
 Legal services
 MAT leadership
 Estate services
 Governance services

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

The charge varies and is up to 5.5% of GAG income for each school. Due to the nature of the funding of the
academy, Bradford Alternative Provision Academy also pay 5.5% of place funding (2022: 5.5% of GAG income).

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Appleton Academy 399 389

Bradford Alternative Provision Academy 37 90

Baildon Glen Primary School - -

Bowling Park Primary School 172 -

Cavendish Primary School - -

Copthorne Primary School 113 109

Cottingley Village Primary School 105 99

Exceed Teaching School 25 25

Harden Primary School 32 31

Holybrook Primary School 73 71

Horton Grange Primary Schoool 170 165

Horton Park Primary School 134 132

Knowleswood Primary School - -

Oastlers School 37 -

Total 1,297 1,111
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12. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2022 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no expenses were remimbursed to trustees (2022 - no expenses were
reimbursed to trustees).

13. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative
to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover up
to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of
the RPA scheme membership.

14. Intangible assets

Computer
software

£000

Cost

At 1 September 2022 7

At 31 August 2023 7

Amortisation

At 1 September 2022 4

Charge for the year 2

At 31 August 2023 6

Net book value

At 31 August 2023 1

At 31 August 2022 3
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15. Tangible fixed assets

Long-term
leasehold
property

Assets under
construction

Furniture and
equipment

Computer
equipment

Motor
vehicles Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation

At 1 September 2022 72,204 - 382 902 30 73,518

Additions 629 546 91 297 16 1,579

Transfers on conversion
from local authority 40,395 - - - - 40,395

At 31 August 2023 113,228 546 473 1,199 46 115,492

Depreciation

At 1 September 2022 5,835 - 257 532 28 6,652

Charge for the year 1,590 - 61 150 3 1,804

At 31 August 2023 7,425 - 318 682 31 8,456

Net book value

At 31 August 2023 105,803 546 155 517 15 107,036

At 31 August 2022 66,369 - 125 370 2 66,866

The total value of the land and buildings transferred on conversion from local authority was £40,395k. This is
broken down by school as follows:

Bowling Park Primary School £5,800k
Cavendish Primary School £6,560k
Knowleswood Primary School £14,240k
Oastlers School £13,795k
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16. Debtors

2023 2022
£000 £000

Due within one year

Trade debtors 386 69

Other debtors 26 21

Prepayments and accrued income 1,366 906

VAT recoverable 439 119

2,217 1,115

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2023 2022
£000 £000

Trade creditors 1,002 860

Other taxation and social security 521 344

Other creditors 625 389

Accruals and deferred income 3,327 2,618

5,475 4,211

2023 2022
£000 £000

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 529 564

Resources deferred during the year 840 529

Amounts released from previous periods (529) (564)

840 529

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for rates relief, universal free
school meals, school led tutoring, parental engagement activities, various grants and school trips booked for the
2023/24 academic year.

Page 63



 
EXCEED ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

18. Statement of funds

Balance at 1
September

2022
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Transfers
in/out
£000

Gains/
(Losses)

£000

Balance at 31
August 2023

£000

Unrestricted
funds

Unrestricted 2,436 1,418 (800) - - 3,054 
Unrestricted

teaching school 210 42 (17) - - 235 

2,646 1,460 (817) - - 3,289

Restricted general
funds

GAG 3,028 25,739 (25,910) (230) - 2,627 
Other ESFA/DfE

Grants - 3,697 (3,697) - - - 
Other funds - 4,766 (4,766) - - - 
Teaching school 229 1,146 (935) - - 440 
UIFSM - 426 (426) - - - 
Pupil premium - 2,690 (2,595) - - 95 
Other restricted

general funds 1 - (1) - - - 
Pension reserve (1,232) (1,636) (871) - 3,334 (405) 

2,026 36,828 (39,201) (230) 3,334 2,757
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1
September

2022
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Transfers
in/out
£000

Gains/
(Losses)

£000

Balance at 31
August 2023

£000

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Transferred on
conversion 64,647 40,395 (1,561) - - 103,481 

Capital grants 1,980 1,234 (88) (648) - 2,478 
Capital

expenditure 944 - (155) 878 - 1,667 

67,571 41,629 (1,804) 230 - 107,626

Total Restricted
funds 69,597 78,457 (41,005) - 3,334 110,383

Total funds 72,243 79,917 (41,822) - 3,334 113,672
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG)
GAG funding must be used for the running costs of Academies. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of
State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August
2023.

Other DfE/ESFA grants
These funds relate to PE and Sports grant and Development grants.

Other Funds
These funds included the Special Educational Needs, EYSFF and other LA and non-government grants, as well as the
restricted element of income from trading activities.

Other Restricted Funds
Other restricted funds relate to funds held on behalf of Exceed Academies trust for specific activities governed by
the terms of the grant.

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund - DfE/ESFA capital grants
The Devolved Formula Capital grant, Conditional Improvement Fund and SCA income is to be used specifically to
maintain and improve buildings.

Transfers
A transfer of £230,000 has been made to the restricted fixed asset fund representing capital purchased from
revenue funds. The transfer has been made from restricted income funds.
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at
1 September

2021
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Transfers
in/out

£000

Balance at
31 August

2022
£000

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted 2,340 859 (700) (63) 2,436 
Unrestricted teaching school 209 1 - - 210 

2,549 860 (700) (63) 2,646

Balance at
1 September

2021
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Transfers
in/out

£000

Balance at
31 August

2022
£000

Restricted general funds

GAG 2,472 19,375 (18,506) (313) 3,028 
Other ESFA/DfE Grants - 1,884 (1,693) (191) - 
Other funds 39 2,974 (3,013) - - 
Pupil premium - 1,744 (1,744) - - 
Teaching school 89 1,561 (1,421) - 229 
UIFSM - 315 (315) - - 
Pension reserve (14,810) (497) (2,335) 16,410 (1,232) 
Other restricted general funds - - 1 - 1 

(12,210) 27,356 (29,026) 15,906 2,026
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Balance at
1 September

2021
£000

Income
£000

Expenditure
£000

Transfers
in/out

£000

Balance at
31 August

2022
£000

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transferred on conversion 63,574 2,300 (1,238) 11 64,647 
Capital grants 1,973 587 (253) (327) 1,980 
Capital expenditure 181 - (120) 883 944 
Donated fixed assets 106 - (106) - - 

65,834 2,887 (1,717) 567 67,571

Total Restricted funds 53,624 30,243 (30,743) 16,473 69,597

Total funds 56,173 31,103 (31,443) 16,410 72,243
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Appleton Academy 1,069 1,047

Baildon Glen Primary - 50

Bowling Park Primary Academy - -

Bradford Alternative Provision Academy 854 757

Cavendish Primary School 74 -

Copthorne Primary School 499 557

Cottingley Village Primary School 319 200

Exceed Teaching School 651 438

Exceed Trust 2 466

Harden Primary School 101 95

Holybrook Primary School 567 355

Horton Grange Primary School 740 937

Horton Park Primary School 1,053 1,002

Knowleswood Primary School 40 -

Oastlers School 482 -

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 6,451 5,904

Restricted fixed asset fund 107,626 67,571

Pension reserve (405) (1,232)

Total 113,672 72,243
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18. Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and
educational

support staff
costs

Other
support staff

costs
Educational

supplies

Other costs
excluding

depreciation
Total
2023

Total
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000         £000         £000

Appleton Academy 5,744 598 1,175 2,148 9,665 8,237 
Baildon Glen Primary 861 85 64 275 1,285 463 
Bradford Alternative

Provision Academy 1,283 150 434 205 2,072 1,796 
Copthorne Primary

School 1,945 152 122 472 2,691 2,543 
Cottingley Village

Primary School 1,575 144 152 439 2,310 2,236 
Exceed Teaching

School 353 131 8 459 951 1,394 
Exceed Trust 439 522 1 2,256 3,218 3,809 
Harden Primary

School 764 81 58 225 1,128 1,033 
Holybrook Primary

School 1,286 91 86 313 1,776 1,757 
Horton Grange

Primary School 2,662 196 210 668 3,736 3,702 
Horton Park Primary

School 1,915 155 251 549 2,870 2,924 
Bowling Park Primary

Academy 3,301 349 209 613 4,472 - 
Oastlers School 1,366 270 97 216 1,949 - 
Cavendish Primary

Academy 728 78 41 119 966 - 
Knowleswood Primary

School 649 118 27 132 926 - 

Academy trust 24,871 3,120 2,935 9,089 40,015 29,894
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19. Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Unrestricted
funds
2023

Restricted
funds
2023

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2023

Total
funds
2023

        £000         £000         £000         £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 107,036 107,036

Intangible fixed assets - - 1 1

Current assets 3,289 8,637 589 12,515

Creditors due within one year - (5,475) - (5,475)

Provisions for liabilities and charges - (405) - (405)

Total 3,289 2,757 107,626 113,672

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Unrestricted
funds
2022

Restricted
funds
2022

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2022

Total
funds
2022

        £000         £000         £000         £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 66,866 66,866

Intangible fixed assets - - 3 3

Current assets 2,646 7,469 702 10,817

Creditors due within one year - (4,211) - (4,211)

Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1,232) - (1,232)

Total 2,646 2,026 67,571 72,243
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20. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 2022
£000 £000

Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) 38,095 (340)

Adjustments for:

Amortisation 2 2

Depreciation 1,804 1,549

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,235) (587)

Interest receivable (92) (13)

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 1,636 497

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 733 2,087

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 138 248

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (1,102) 31

Increase in creditors 1,264 1,742

Fixed assets donated from local authority on conversion (40,395) (2,300)

Cash received from local authority on conversion (551) (100)

Net cash provided by operating activities 297 2,816

21. Cash flows from financing activities

2023 2022
£000 £000

Cash received from local authority on conversion 40,946 2,400

Net cash provided by financing activities 40,946 2,400
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22. Cash flows from investing activities

2023 2022
£000 £000

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 92 13

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (41,974) (3,130)

Capital grants from DfE Group 1,235 587

Net cash used in investing activities (40,647) (2,530)

23. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£000 £000

Cash in hand and at bank 10,298 9,702

Total cash and cash equivalents 10,298 9,702

24. Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September

2022 Cash flows
At 31 August

2023
£000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 9,702 596 10,298

9,702 596 10,298
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25. Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 September 2022 Bowling Park Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Exceed Academies Trust from Bradford
Local Authority for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income from
Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
Total
funds

        £000         £000         £000         £000
Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings - - 5,800 5,800

Current assets

Cash - representing budget surplus on
other school funds 56 - - 56

Non-current liabilities

Pension liability - (536) - (536)

Net assets/(liabilities) 56 (536) 5,800 5,320
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25. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 March 2023 Oastlers School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the
operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Exceed Academies Trust from Bradford Local Authority for
£NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income from
Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
Total
funds

        £000         £000         £000         £000
Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings - - 13,795 13,795

Current assets

Cash - representing budget surplus on LA
funds 443 59 - 502

Non-current liabilities

Pension liability - (330) - (330)

Net assets/(liabilities) 443 (271) 13,795 13,967
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25. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 May 2023 Cavendish Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Exceed Academies Trust from Bradford Local
Authority for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income from
Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
Total
funds

        £000         £000         £000         £000
Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings - - 6,560 6,560

Current assets

Accrual - representing budget surplus on
LA funds 22 - - 22

Non-current liabilities

Pension liability - (432) - (432)

Net assets/(liabilities) 22 (432) 6,560 6,150
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25. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

On 1 May 2023 Knowleswood Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Exceed Academies Trust from Bradford Local
Authority for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income from
Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
Total
funds

        £000         £000         £000         £000
Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold land and buildings - - 14,240 14,240

Current liabilities

Accrual - representing budget deficit on LA
funds (29) - - (29)

Non-current liabilities

Pension liability - (338) - (338)

Net (liabilities)/assets (29) (338) 14,240 13,873

26. Capital commitments

2023 2022
£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 952 36
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27. Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-
teaching staff, which is managed by West Yorkshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022.

Contributions amounting to £nil were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £nil) and are included
within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

 employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
 total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service

to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service
deficit of £22,000 million

 the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,846,000 (2022 - £1,969,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £1,813,000 (2022 - £1,046,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £1,297,000 (2022 - £740,000) and employees' contributions totalled £ 516,000
(2022 - £306,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 13% for employers and between 5.5% and
12.5% per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education
reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023 2022
% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.85 3.95

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.6 2.7

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.0 4.1

Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.6 2.7
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Years Years

Retiring today

Males 21.0 21.8

Females 24.1 24.6

Retiring in 20 years

Males 22.2 22.5

Females 25.1 25.7

Sensitivity analysis

2023 2022
£000 £000

Discount rate +0.1% (597) (526)

Discount rate -0.1% 625 547

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase (679) (567)

Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 679 567

Pension increase rate +0.1% 543 466

Pension increase rate -0.1% (516) (445)

Salary increase +0.1% 81 81

Salary increase rate -0.1% (81) (81)
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31 August
2023

At 31 August
2022

£000 £000

Equities 21,429 15,193

Government bonds 1,980 1,217

Corporate bonds 1,204 818

Property 883 742

Cash and other liquid assets 1,043 761

Other 214 285

Total market value of assets 26,753 19,016

The actual return on scheme assets was £102,000 (2022 - £250,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Interest income 957 302

Interest cost (1,095) (550)

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (138) (248)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

At 1 September 20,248 31,891

Current service cost 2,030 2,827

Interest cost 1,095 550

Contributions by participants 516 306

Actuarial gains (4,189) (16,462)

Benefits paid (341) (345)

Net increase in liabilities from acquisitions 7,799 1,481

At 31 August 27,158 20,248
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

At 1 September 19,016 17,081

Interest income 957 302

Actuarial gains/ (losses) (855) (52)

Employer contributions 1,297 740

Contributions by participants 516 306

Benefits paid (341) (345)

Net increase in assets from acquisitions 6,163 984

At 31 August 26,753 19,016

28. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the academy trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000

Within 1 year 116 34

Between 1 and 5 years 397 -

513 34

29. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.

Page 82



 
EXCEED ACADEMIES TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

30. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and
obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

Canterbury Nursery School, a school in which Mr D Jacques is a governor and Mr J Bracewell's spouse is employed
as Co-Head:

During the year the academy trust received income of £2,000 (2022: £21,464) and incurred expenditure of
£52,408 (2022: £24,366). Income relates to placement funding.  Expenditure relates to use of space and supply
cover. At 31 August 2023 an amount of £534 (2022: £8,881) was owed to the academy trust and an amount of
£2,111 (2022: £nil) was owed by the academy trust.

Dixons Academies Trust, a Trust in which Mr B Fitzpatrick is a Trustee:
During the year the academy trust received income of £4,382 (2022: £nil) relating to placement funding and
training and incurred expenditure of £2,500 (2022: £6,000) relating to support services provided.

The transactions followed the Trust's procurement process.  Where services have exceeded £2,500, the element
above this is provided at no more than cost.  All transactions have been reported in advance to the ESFA and have
been carried out in accordance with the Academy Trust Handbook. 
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